
- 1 - 

 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

THURSDAY 10TH AUGUST 2023 AT 10.30 A.M. 

 

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE, B61 8DA,   

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors D. J. A. Forsythe, B. Kumar and B. McEldowney 

 

Reserve Member: To be determined 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
1. Election of Chairman for the meeting  

 
2. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  

 
3. Declarations of Interest  

 
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 
the nature of those interests. 
 

4. Application for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of Lounge, 58-60 
High Street, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 8EX (Pages 9 - 40) 
 

5. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting.  



- 2 - 

 
 

 

 

  

K. DICKS 

Chief Executive  

Parkside 

Market Street 

BROMSGROVE 

Worcestershire 

B61 8DA 

 

2nd August 2023 

 



- 3 - 

 

 

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact  

Pauline Ross 

Democratic Services Officer 

 

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA 

Tel: 01527 881406 

Email: p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

 

  

 

 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, 

please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above. 

 

 

Notes:  

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when the 

Sub-Committee might have to move into closed session to consider 

exempt or confidential information.  For items that are exempt, the 

public are excluded.

mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


- 4 - 

 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 

press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 

documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 

broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 

 

 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 

the date of the meeting. 

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 

Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 

which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 

of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 

electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 

all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 

items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 

attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 

Committees/Boards. 

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 

has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 

concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 

Delegation. 

 

You can access the following documents: 

 

 Meeting Agendas 

 Meeting Minutes 

 The Council’s Constitution 

 

at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 

 

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


                                                                                       Revised October 2022 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (Premises) 
 

HEARING PROCEDURE 
 

 
1. The Chairman will open the hearing and ask Members of the 
 Sub-Committee and officers present to introduce themselves.  
 
2. The Chairman will ask all parties to the proceedings to introduce 

themselves. 
 
3. The Charman will ask all parties if they are satisfied with the 

hearing procedure to be followed. Any variation to the hearing 
procedures will be at the discretion of the Chairman. 

 
4. The Technical Officer (Licensing), Worcestershire Regulatory 

Services will present the report. 
 
5. The Chairman will invite Members of the Sub-Committee and all 
 parties to the proceedings to put any relevant questions to the 
 Technical Officer. 
 
6. The Chairman will invite the Applicant and/or their representative 

to present their case and call any witnesses.  A total of 15 minutes 
will be allowed.   

 
7. The Chairman will invite Members of the Sub-Committee and all 
 parties to the proceedings to put any relevant questions to the 
 Applicant and/or their representative. 
 
8. The Chairman will invite the Responsible Authorities to present 

their representations.  A total of 15 minutes will be allowed.   
 
9. The Chairman will invite Members of the Sub-Committee and all 
 parties to the proceedings to put any relevant questions to the 
 Responsible Authorities. 
 
10. All Other Parties to the proceedings will be invited to present their 

representations or elect a spokesperson to speak on their behalf.  
A total of 15 minutes will be allowed.    

 
11. The Chairman will invite Members of the Sub-Committee and all 

parties to the proceedings to put any relevant questions to the 
Other Parties. 

 
12. The Responsible Authorities will be invited to sum up.  A total of 5 

minutes will be allowed.   
 
13. The Other Parties will be invited to sum up.  A total of 5 minutes 

will be allowed.  
 

Page 5

Appendix



                                                                                       Revised October 2022 

 
14. The Applicant and/or their representative will be invited to sum 

up. A total of 5 minutes will be allowed.  
 
15. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if there is any legal 

advice to be given.  
 
16. The Chairman will close the Hearing so that the Sub-Committee 

can reach its decision in private. 
 
17. The Sub-Committee’s decision will be confirmed in writing to the 

Applicant and those parties who made representations within 5 
working days.  

 
18.  If any party to the proceedings wishes to appeal against the Sub- 
 Committee’s decision an appeal must be commenced by the 
 appellant giving a notice of appeal to the designated officer for the
 magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the  

day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority  
of the decision which is being appealed.  

 
 
 
NB  
 
In considering any representations or notice made by a party the Sub- 
Committee may take into account documentary or other information 
produced by a party in support of their application, representations or 
notice either before the hearing or with the consent of all other parties at 
the hearing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6

Appendix



                                                                                       Revised October 2022 

Please Note: 
 
1. Each application coming before the Licensing Sub-Committee will 

be treated on its own merits, and the Sub-Committee will take its 
decision based upon: 

 
 a) the promotion of the four licensing objectives, as given by the 

Licensing Act 2003, namely: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; and 

 the protection of children from harm;   
   

 b) Bromsgrove District Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy; 
 
 c) guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003; 

and 
 
 d) the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
        e) The report presented to the Sub-Committee by the Technical 
            Officer, and all relevant written and oral representations.  
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Appendix



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

10TH AUGUST 2023 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

LOUNGE, 58 – 60 HIGH STREET, BROMSGROVE, WORCS, B61 8EX 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Director: Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services 

Contact Officer: Dave Etheridge 

Principal Licensing Officer 

01905 822799 

enquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Sanders Park 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Application Form 

Appendix 2 – Plan Provided with Application 

Appendix 3 – Police / Applicant Agreement 

Appendix 4 – Representations from other person 

Appendix 5 – Further submission from other person 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1. To consider and determine an application for grant of a premises licence in respect of 
 
Lounge 
58 - 60 High Street 
Bromsgrove 
Worcestershire 
B61 8EX 
 

1.2 A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1. On 28 June 2023 an application was received from Loungers UK Ltd for grant of a 

premises licence in respect of: 
 
Lounge, 58 - 60 High Street, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 8EX 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

  
2.2. The application contained all the requisite documentation including the fee and a plan 

of the premises.  The plan of the premises can be seen at Appendix 2.   The plan 
shows that, as well as the internal areas, the premises that is subject to the application 
includes a small outdoor area on the High Street. 
 

2.3. It can be confirmed that the application has been advertised in accordance with the 
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 and associated regulations and that the 
application has also been served on all responsible authorities. 
 

2.4. The applicant is applying for the following licensable activities: - 
 

 
Activity 
 

Days From  To Indoors/Outdoors 

 
Late Night Refreshment 

 
Everyday 

 
23:00 

 
- 

 
00:30 

 
Both 

 
 
Sale of Alcohol 

 
Everyday 

 
10:00 

 
- 

 
00:00 

 
Both 

 
 
 

2.5. The designated premises supervisor identified in the application is Vesela Emilova 
Mihaylova. 
 

2.6. The premises that is subject to the application is currently trading as a branch of the 
health and beauty retailer Superdrug. 
 
 
 

3. REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 

3.1 A representation was initially received in respect of the application from West Mercia 
Police.  However subsequent discussions between the applicant’s representatives and 
the Police concluded with an agreement being reached that has led to the Police 
deciding to withdraw their representation. 
 

3.2 This agreement relates to amendments being made to the applicant’s operating 
schedule.  Specifically, the applicant and Police have agreed to a small amendment 
being made to the wording of one of the steps the applicant has proposed to take to 
promote the licensing objectives, and the inclusion of a number of further steps that 
the applicant will take in order to promote the licensing objectives. Details of the 
amendments that the applicant has agreed to make to their operating schedule can be 
seen at Appendix 3. 
 

3.3 Conditions that are consistent with the applicant’s operating schedule, as amended by 
agreement with West Mercia Police, would be attached to any premises licence 
granted by the Sub-Committee should Members decide to grant the application in 
whole or in part. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 

 

3.4 No other responsible authorities have made relevant representations in respect of the 
application. 

 
 
 

OTHER PERSONS 
 

3.5 A representation was also received from another person.  This representation raises 
concerns about the impact that granting the application would have on the prevention 
of public nuisance licensing objective.   

 
3.6 A copy of the representation that has been received from the other person can be 

seen at Appendix 4. 
 

3.7 Having received a notice giving details of the Licensing Sub-Committee hearing, the 
person who made the representation contacted officers to advise that they could not 
attend the hearing.  They did however make further written submissions which amplify 
their original representation.  These further submissions can be seen at Appendix 5. 
 
 
 

4 LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1 The Sub-Committee should have regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

under the Licensing Act 2003.   
 
4.2 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy is available to download from the 

Council’s website or to request a hard copy, contact Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services on 01905 822799 or email enquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk  

 

 

 
5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to the 

promotion of the licensing objectives which are: 
 

  the prevention of crime and disorder; 

  public safety; 

  the prevention of public nuisance; 

  the protection of children from harm. 
 
5.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have regard to the 

guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 and the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
5.3 The Sub-Committee must also have regard to the representations made and the 

evidence it hears. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk


 

 

5.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 

(a) Grant the application as requested 
 
(b) Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to 

them. 
 
(c)  Reject the application in whole or in part. 

 
 
5.5 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject 

the whole or part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to do 
so. It must actually be appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
5.6 All parties to the hearing will be notified of the Sub-Committee’s decision in writing 

within five working days of the conclusion of the hearing. 
 
5.7 Any party aggrieved by a decision taken by the Sub-Committee may appeal against 

the decision to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being notified of the decision 
in writing. 

 
5.8 The hearing should be conducted in accordance with the agreed procedure. 

 

 
6 FOR DECISION 

 
 
6.1 The Sub-Committee must consider and determine the application. 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 

 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

 

 

I/We Loungers UK Ltd 

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 

  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Lounge, 58-60 High Street 

Post town Bromsgrove Postcode B61 8EX 

 

Telephone number at premises (if any)         

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £37,000 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as appropriate 

 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 

partnership 

 please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 

liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory corporation)  please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment  please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 

 

 

 

ga) 

 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the 

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 

independent hospital in Wales 

 

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of 

Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 

(within the meaning of that Part) in an 

independent hospital in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 

England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one 

box below):     

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 

premises for licensable activities; or 
 

I am making the application pursuant to a   

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                   I am 18 years old or 

over 
 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



 

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                   I am 18 years old or 

over 
 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current postal address 

if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

 

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 

 

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 

give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a 

body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned. 

 

Name 

Loungers UK Ltd 

Address 

26 Baldwin Street, Bristol, BS1 1SE 

Registered number (where applicable) 

04595806 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 

Company 

Telephone number (if any)  

      

E-mail address (optional) 

      

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 

Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

2  1  0  7  2  0  2  3  
 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 

when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

                
 

 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

A food led cafe bar to located on High Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8EX. 

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any 

one time, please state the number expected to attend. 
      

 

 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

 

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 

apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 
 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



A 

 

Plays  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



B 
 

Films  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)  

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 

entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



E 
 

 

 

 

Live music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of live music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



F 
 

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the playing of recorded music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



G 
 

Performances of 

dance 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



H 
 

Anything of a similar 

description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or 

(g) 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 

providing 

      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 

guidance note 5) 

      
            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 

within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      
            

Sun 
            

            

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 4



  

I 
 

Late night 

refreshment 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00 00:30 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue 23:00 00:30 

            

Wed 23:00 00:30 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 23:00 00:30 

            

Fri 23:00 00:30 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 

those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 

guidance note 6) 

The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the 

provision of late night refreshment from the terminal hour for those 

activities on New Year's Eve through to the commencement time for 

those activities on New Year's Day. 

            

Sat 23:00 00:30 

            

Sun 23:00 00:30 

            

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 

consumption – please tick (please read 

guidance note 8)   

 

On the 

premises 
 

Off the 

premises 
 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Tue 10:00 24:00 

            

Wed 10:00 24:00 

            

Thur 10:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the 

provision of late night refreshment from the terminal hour for those 

activities on New Year's Eve through to the commencement time for 

those activities on New Year's Day. 

            

Fri 10:00 24:00 

            

Sat 10:00 24:00 

            

Sun 10:00 24:00 

            

 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 

designated premises supervisor   (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 

checklist at the end of the form): 

 

Name 

Vesela Emilova Mihaylova 

Date of birth 21/12/1982                              

 

Address 

1 Waltham Grove, Kingstanding, Birmingham 

Postcode B44 0SU 

Personal licence number (if known) 

9253/1 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 

Birmingham City Council 

 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 4



 

 

K 

 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 

children (please read guidance note 9). 

N/A 

 

L 

 

Hours premises are 

open to the public 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon 08:00 00:30 

            

Tue 08:00 00:30 

            

Wed 08:00 00:30 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 

open to the public at different times from those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the 

provision of late night refreshment from the terminal hour for those 

activities on New Year's Eve through to the commencement time 

for those activities on New Year's Day. 

Thur 08:00 00:30 

            

Fri 08:00 00:30 

            

Sat 08:00 00:30 

            

Sun 08:00 00:30 

            

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



 

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol and the provision of late night 

refreshment from the terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve through to the 

commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day. 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling 

frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall 

continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 

when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period 

of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 

immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day 

period.  

 

2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 

shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. This staff member must be 

able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data 

with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 

3. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the Licensing Authority or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the 

incident and will record the following:  

 

(a) all crimes reported to the venue  

(b) all ejections of patrons  

(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  

(d) any incidents of disorder  

(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  

(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  

(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  

(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 

c) Public safety 

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in 

all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4



1. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall 

not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 

2. The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption in the area designated for external trading on 

the licence plan shall be restricted to alcohol consumed at tables and chairs. 

 

3. The premises shall only operate as a café/bar. Waiter/waitress service will be available to 

patrons at all times. 

 

4. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable after 2300 each day. 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

1. The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply to the 

premises whereby all staff likely to be involved in the sale or supply of alcohol  will be trained 

to ask any patron attempting to purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years 

(or older if the licence holder so elects) to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification 

being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form or 

method of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this 

licence. 

 

2. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include the 

date and time of the refused sale and the identity of the member of staff who refused the sale. 

The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised 

officer of the Licensing Authority at all times whilst the premises are open. 

 

3. There must be no adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters 

ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children. 

 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 

 

 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 

 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 

others where applicable. 
 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 

designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 
 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 

 

 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected. 

 

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 

a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 

have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 

Kingdom (please read note 15). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 

THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 

LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 

LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 

ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 

SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 

KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.  

 

 

 

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 

note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

 

 

 

Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 

partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 

am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 

entitlement to live and  work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 

condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 

of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I 

cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 

note 15).       

 

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 

(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 

work relating to a licesable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or 

her proof of  entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15) 

    

 

Signature 
 

Date 22/06/2023 

Capacity Agent 

 

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 

state in what capacity. 

 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 4



Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 

with this application (please read guidance note 14) 

TLV/41074/265 

Winckworth Sherwood LLP, Minerva House, 5 Montague Close 

Post town London Postcode SE1 9BB 

Telephone number (if any) 0207 593 5104 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

tvlahovic@wslaw.co.uk 

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



EMG

S

7
62

7
62

7
62

7 62

7
62

9 26

9
26

7 62

9 26

9
26

TRADING

BAR

KITCHEN

0 5

Scale (m)

NOTE:  Layout as per LOUNGERS designed 
layout drawing Bromsgrove No1,  dated 27/01/23

EMG

HD

M
AI

N
EN

TR
AN

C
E

EXIT

C

FIRE
EXITmin.

1050 CL

GROUND FLOOR PLAN - 1:50@A1, 1:100@A3

B

F

DP

Fire Alarm Control Panel

Smoke detector

Smoke detector/alarm 

Heat detector

Alarm sounder

Emergency lighting in accordance 
with BS5266

Fire blanket 1m x 1m unless 
otherwise stated

6 litre fire foam extinguisher

10kg dry powder fire extinguisher

Total extent of licensed premises

Fire door keep locked

Fire door keep closed

SD
C

FACP

HD

EXIT

LICENSING KEY:

Illuminated Fire Exit sign

Break glass call point for fire alarm in 
accordance with BS5839

Fire door to provide min. 30 minutes 
fire protection

Fire door to provide min. 30 minutes 
fire protection and where restricted 
smoke leakage at ambient 
temperatures is needed.

Area for consumption of intoxicating 
liquor

Area for storage of liquor/bar counter

Toilet accommodation

Kitchen & staff areas

EMG

FD30

FD30S

S

FDKL

FDKC

ACC
WC

PASS

EXIT
FDKC
FD30S

EXIT
FDKC
FD30S

B

F
DP

S

EMG

S

EMG

S

EMG

S

EMG EMG EMG

EMG
S

EMG

S

EMG
M WC

F WC

COMMS
+

SAFE
EMG

S

FD30S
FDKL

FDKC
FD30S

EXIT
FDKC
FD30S

EXIT

EXIT

EMG

S

FDKC
FD30S

FDKC
FD30S

FINAL
EXIT

FACP

EXTERNAL
TRADING
48.7m2

H
 I 

G
 H

   
  S

 T
 R

 E
 E

 T
N   O

   R
   T

   H

Loungers UK Limited

Project

Client

Title

Drawing No.

Scale

LNG4737.05A

1:50@A1
1:100@A3

Date APR 2023

LOUNGE at 58-59 High Street
Bromsgrove   B61 8EX 

RPCA   St Brandon's House   29   Great  George  Street
Bristol  BS1 5QT • 0117  974  2612
www.rpca.co.uk • info@rpca.co.uk

R I C H A R D    P E D L A R    A R C H I T E C T S
A R C H I T E C T U R E   •   C O N S E R V A T I O N   •   U R B A N  D E S I G N  

Purpose of Issue

Rev Date Initials Details

Premises Licensing

APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENSING

A1

A 17.05.23 DR External trading area added

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 4

tlv�
Stamp




T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Details of agreement reached between Loungers UK Ltd and West 
Mercia Police in respect of the application for the grant of a 
premises licence in respect of: 
 

Lounge, 58-60 High Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8EX 
 
 
Amendment to wording in Operating Schedule: 
 
Original text contained in operating schedule: 
 
The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of the Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling 
frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall 
continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 
31 day period.  
 
Amended text agreed between applicant and West Mercia Police: 
 
The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling 

frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall 

continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 

when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 

period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 

available within 48 hours of a request from the police or authorised officer throughout the 

entire 31-day period. 

 
 
Additional Steps Agreed by the applicant to promote the licensing objectives: 
 
 

• SIA staff to be employed/used when it is deemed to be suitable by a risk 
assessment. Such assessments would also be kept on site and should be accessible 
by police, the local authority or any other relevant authority when requested  

 

• Signage informing customers of the age verification policy adopted at the premises 
will be prominently displayed. 

 

• All staff engaged or to be engaged in the sale of alcohol on the premises shall 

receive appropriate training, such training to cover age restricted sales. 

 

• Induction training must be completed and documented prior to the sale of alcohol by 

the staff member. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 4



 

• Refresher/reinforcement training must be completed and documented at intervals of 

no more than 6 months 

 

• Training records will be available for inspection by a police officer or other authorised 

officer on request. 

 

• Training records will be retained at the premises or at the offices of the licence holder 

for a minimum period of 12 months. 

 

• A written delegation of authority record will be kept at the premises whereby non 

personal licence holders are authorised to make sales on behalf of a personal licence 

holder. 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 4



From: xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
Sent: 11 July 2023 15:03 
To: WRS Enquiries <enquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk> 
Subject: 58-60 high street Bromsgrove  
 
This email originated from outside of the organisation 
STOP    : Were you expecting this email? Does it look genuine? 
THINK   : Before you CLICK on any links or OPEN any attachments. 
 
 
To whom it may concern 
 
 
Regarding application  23/03119 PREMLI  
 
We are greatly concerned about reading of the application of license for the property. Above this 
store are 3 residential properties 60A 58a and 58b high street. 
All three residential properties have young children and families living in them. 
The agreement of a license for alcohol to be served will increase noise greatly. These tenants have 
all lived in the properties for many years and with it always being used as a retail it would have social 
hours when it’s closed so the families living there have suitable life style.  
If The premises is to start serving alcohol and becoming a bar would then this changes the resident 
environment dramatically and impacts on all three families hugely. 
We please ask that this is taken into consideration. 
 
Many thanks 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Sophie Hurst <**********************************>  
Sent: 31 July 2023 06:34 
To: WRS Enquiries <enquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk> 
Subject: 58-60 high street  
  

 
This email originated from outside of the organisation 

STOP  : Were you expecting this email? Does it look genuine? 

THINK : Before you CLICK on any links or OPEN any attachments. 

 
  

Dear Dave Etheridge 
 
 
 

I am writing to you in response to your email dated 26th July. 
I greatly appreciate you responding and inviting me to attend the hearing regarding the 
application by Loungers UK Ltd for the grant of a premises license on Thursday 10th August. 
Unfortunately I am unable to attend but desperetky wish our points to be taken into 
consideration. As direct residents of 58a 58b and 60a high street we are directly above the 
planned premises change. All three properties have young children residing within them and 
bedrooms on the front directly above the planned premises. Now we do not object to the 
licensee completely but greatly want the hours to be reconsidered and feel a midnight license 
7days a week is hugely unfair and unreasonable. It’s already causing huge stress and anxiety at 
the proposed increase in noise, and drinking behaviour.  
Is it possible that our concerns are raised and maybe reconsidered closing hours of 8/9pm in the 
week 10pm at weekend. Could this be presented as a proposal at the hearing? We have resided 
in these premises for nearly ten years, purposefully choosing to live in a premises that was retail 
below so that the opening hours wouldn’t impose on family life. 
I greatly appreciate your time in reading and considering this and if I can be of any more help 
please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
 

Kind regards 

Sophie  
07940520396 
  
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure
	4 Application for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of Lounge, 58-60 High Street, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 8EX
	Appendix 1 - Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence
	Appendix 2 - Plan submitted alongside application
	Appendix 3 - Police and Applicant Agreement
	Appendix 4 - Representation - Other Person
	Appendix 5 - Further submission by other person


